
United Nations Nations Unies 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

CONSEIL 
ECONOMIQUE 
ET SOCIAL 

~STRIC'l'.lill 

Eji CEF/ SR . 60 
28 November 1949 

SOCIAL COUNCIL ORI GINAL: ENGLISH 

/ fnw_.m NATIONS TIVTERNATIONAL CRDJ)RENS -: ;. t.-.'GENCY FUND 

EI ECU'I'IVE :BOARD 

S1.J1-'j]Vl.ARY RECORD OF THE SIXTIETH MEET_ ~" . 

Held at lake Success , New York , 
on Frida y , L~ Novemt"' r 1949, at 3 p .m . 

CONTENTS : 

Rep ort of Pr ogr alliffie Ccmmittee Sess ion he ld 2 - 3 November 1949 

(Summary of r e ccrur..enda tions; E/I CEF /vr. 72 ; E/I CEF /W . 83; E/I CEF jw .85 ; 

E/ICEF /W . 73 /Add. 3) 

Cha irman : 

Member s : (Abs ent ) 

Y.:r • ,JOQKR L 

Mr . ALViE:rDA 

(Absent ) 

Mr s . SINClAIR 

Mr ; TSAO 

iYlr • CABJU ZOSA 

Mr . NOSEK 

Mr s • 1-:.RI GHT 

lvx • COB.Rl!.~ 

i'l,r . AUJAL KIJ 

.M~· • 'l':HEODOROPOUIL~! 

l'f,rs . AL - IGIOJ A 

Baron van l:t'EFJv.BTRCJ_ 

Mr . SUTCH 

Mr . NORD 

Mr . J'OSE ENCmAS 

Mr . WOlLIN 

Ijr.r • viAGNIERE 

(Ab sen t ) 

Nrr . HAHN 

.Lv2' • KO:BUSEKC 

Ivx • Lt:;DFARD 

Pol and 

Ar c ehtina 

Au s tralia 

Bra zil 

:Byel oruss ian .3ov iet Sociali s t 
Republic 

Canada 

Ch i na 

Col omb i a 

Czechosl ovakia 

Der>..mark 

Ecuador 

F.r ance 

•J.ree ce 

I raq_ 

Netherlands 

New Zealan d 

Norwa y 

Pe r u 

Sweden 

S'wi tzerland 

UKrainia n Soviet Social ist 
Republic 

Union of South Africa 

Union of Sovi et .Socialist Republ ics 

United Ki ngdom of Great :Britain 
a nd Northern Ire l and 



E/ICEF jSR .60 
Page 2 

Members: 
(Cont 'd) 

Miss LENROOT ) 
) 

later Mr. L. HYDE) 

lv!.r. LEVI 

.Also present: Mr. McDOUGALL 

United States l')f .Alllerica 

Yugoslavia 

Food and Agriculture Organization 

REPORT OF PROGRAMME COMMITTEE SESSION HELD 2-3 NOVEMBER 1949 (SUMMARY 

OF RECON.MENDATIONS (E/ICEF /W. 72, E/ICEF /W .83, E/ICEF /W ,lii5, E/ICEF /W. 73/Add ,3)) 

1. .Vir'. ENCINAS (Peru) asked whether the Chairman of the .Programme 

Committee could begin her summary of the Committee's recommendations with 

the question of the new allocations. 

2. Mrs. SINClAIR (Canada), Chairman of the Programme· Committee, 

said tba t the new allocations were dealt with in 'paragraph C of the 

summary report, They were based on the Executive Director's recommendations, 

contained in document E/ICEF/W.85. Since the first allocation recdmmended 

was 1, coo,ooo dollars for the Children's Centre in faris, conditional 

upon approval by the Executive Eoard of an agreement with 

: tc fc f; c. ;~-::.. Government regarding the Cerrtre, she suggested tbat she should 

deal first with the other allocations. , 

3. The new allocations recommended bad been made possible by 

additional resources which had recently become available. The first was 

l,ooo,too dollars for the programme in the Middle :East, _ conditional upon 

continuing support ,for the UNRPR by the General Assembly. The second was 

4,ooo,tb0 dollars for Europe, to extend the feeding programme for a further 

two months. T4e third was 2,ooo,ooo dollars for the total Asiatic programme, ' 

not broken down into countries, The fourth differed from the Executive 

, Director's proposal in recommending a total of 840,000 dollars rather than 

500,000 dollars for La tin America. In making tl)a t change, the Pr.ogramme 

Committee bad adopted an amendment submitted by the representative of Ecuador. 

The increase of 340,000 dollars represented the amount allocated for the 

emergency programme in Ecuador, since it bad been felt tha~ tbat sum should 

not be deducted from the Latin American allocation. The EXecutive 

Director's recommendation of 8oo,ooo dolla~s for freight cbarges on 

the new allocations bad been accepted by the Committee. The total 

recommended allocation had thus been increased to 9,64o,ooo dollars 

and the balance of the unallocated reserve reduced to 547,000 dollars. 

/4 . Mr. AIME]J)A 



4. 

E/ICEF/SR.60 
Page 3 

J.vtr. ALJ.VIEIDA (Brazil) thanked the Chairman of the Programme 

Committee for her s~ary but felt that it was not possible to vote on 

the new allocations at that meeting . The Brazilian delegation had 

assumed that t he Programme Cormnittee vrould make substantial changes in 
,_ .. 

the rec ommendations in E/ICEF/V .85 and had not therefore given particular 

consideration to the cont en t s of t hat document. Contrary to the 

expectations of his delegation, the nmv allocations did not give 

:priority to coun~ries out side Europ e. He w·ished therefore to submit 

certain amendments to those recommendations and requested that the vote 

on t he new allocations sh ould b e postponed. 

c:: 
./• His first reaction t o t he ? rogramme Committee's recommendations 

had been one of surprise and di sa ppointment. The original purpose of the 

Fund had. been relief for t h e ch ildren of \-Tar-devas tated Europe and 

secondarily the irr1provement of ch ild health in general. In the first 

stages, j_ts operations had been concentrated in Europe. Prompt action in 

the face of -vrar damage had g iven quick results. The Fund's attention 

should no-vr be directed elsewhere. In its third y ear of operations it 

s hould extend help to Asia , Africa 7 the Middle East and Latin America, as 

-v1ell as Europ e. '['he crit erion should be the maximization of child welfare 

throughout t h e "IWrld, 

6. It had teen agreed a t the seventh session of the Economic and 

Social Counc il that the Fund should in future g iv e l;riority to areas 

outside Europe . The proport ion of the total r e sources available to be 

alloca tee', t o Europe should hav e 1)een l>rogressively reduced to 30 per cent. 

In sp ite of t hat deci s ion , hov1ever, Europe, excluding Germany, had 

received ~ 7 p er cent of the t otal, >·rhile only 3 .6 per cent had been 

alloca t e d t o Lat:in America . 

7. The Brazilia-c re])r e s en tative had protested against that 

situation a t t he meet:ing of t he Executive Board in Paris and the evidence 

he ha d g iv en t here had not b een r efuted. The current situation in latin 

1-l.lnerica and in As ia 1-ras vror~e tha n i n Euro::;J e. The stag e of diminishing 

r eturns had oeen r eache d i'J. Eur o::;•e and effort exp ended in the under

dev8loped COUntries ':TOUlcl ;y i e l d a }:JrOl-'Ortiona : rJy greater profit. 

Conditions in Euro}JG had i m_pr oved greatly since the war. Evidence had be en 

1___-,iven that the Far East and Le.t in America had great need of assistance. 

He '!las n ot s ugc:.esting t hat a id to European children should 'be cut off, but 

he did ob,je ct to any increase over t he 3C _p er cent allocated to Europe in 

the target budget. If t h e l , 000, 000 dollars _pr oposed for the Paris Centre 

•tTa s added to the 4,ooo, ooc all oca t ed t o Europ e, it would be seen that that 

ccntinent ~ora s r eceiving 52 ~~ er cent of the nevT funds available. Latin 

America vras to receive ')OC, OOO dollars, or less than S per cent. The 

/extra 



E/ICEF/SR.60 
Pa g e 4 

extra allocation of }40,000 dollars vras for the emergency in Ecuador 

and s hould be left out of the reckoning . It was impossible to claim that 

areas outside Europe were receiving the priority that the EXecutive :Board 
I 

had decided they should be granted, . and hiS delegation was unabl_e to accept 

the new pattern of allo'cations prop osed. He proposed therefore that the 

vote on the recommended allocations should be postponed" for at least 

twenty-four hours
5 

to enable delegations to submit amendments. 

8 . Miss LENROOT ( United States of America) sympathized with the 

:Brazilian representative's desire to see more funds allocated to the 

under-developed areas. There vras 
5 

however, already an unprogrammed 

balance of,--more than 1,000,000 dollars allocated to Latin America, and 

although it was possible that it would soon be used, the QUestion of- any 

further increase needed careful consideration in vievr of the fact that 

the Fund's resources were limited. She was unwilling to see existing 

programmes discontinued in order to increase the balance available for 

future programmes. The Administration stated that the money for Europe 

was to be used to continue the feeding programme; she would like to know 

whether the supplementary bloc allocation proposed was also required for 

the c ontinuation of existing services. 

0 
/. Mr. HEY\;JARD (Deputy Director, ICEF) said that the bloc 

allocation 1-ms needed to continue current operations. Part vras to be 

spent on foods other than milk and fats, part on streptomycin, part on 

penicillin for the VD :prograrn.mes and the remainder on further medical 

.supplies, 

1 0 . Mr. LEDWARD (United Kingdcm) said that his delegation had 

abstained from voting on the allocation of 4, 000,000 dollars to Euro:;'e 

and on the supplementary allocation. That a~stention had been consis tent 

-vrith its earl t er attitude on the Executive :Board. He did not c onsider 

that t he s tatistical evidence put forward by the Administration for tha 

continuation of the feeding programmes in Europe justified such an 

a llocation. Conditions had changed but the Administration had failed to 

produce nevr statistic~::. 

/11. He was 



E/ICEF/SR.60 
Page 5 

11. He w-as in s;ynrpathy 'd th the :Brazilian proposal for a postponement 

-vrhich 1rould give delegations time to consider the nevr allocations. There 

had. been no time to refer the neu proposals to Gover!l_ments and give them 

p,n opportunity to decide ho-vr far the ne1,;- allocations com_:;llied >·rith 

previous decisions. 

12. In the J_Togramme Committee he hac' .. complainec3_ arJOut the relative 

smallness of the allocation for Asia: and in connexion vi th that IJoint 

he ~orished to drmr the :Bcarcl' s attention to docu~'16nt EjiCEFj\·.'. i·rhich 

1ms a comparison of the ill'ICEY tarcoet and the allocations made to date. 

He noted that the allocation for Asia fell short of the tarc:;et bude,et by 

a greater amount than any other area or item. For the deficit 

against the target vras 1, 700, COO dollars, ·vrhile for flsia the deficit 1ras 

8,900,000 dollars. He -vrishec1 to em::;ll<:wize that larc:;e discrepancy. The 

art;l;ment of the Administrat:ior. had been that ~rogrmmnes for Asia \·:ere not 

fully prepared; their attitude semned to be that money a.llocated 11EJ.o tc. 

be spent immediately. He asked -vrhel:her it \·.'OUld not oe :cossilJle ancL 

advisable to builG. up a reserve for Asia. 

:Board had heard an account of the ~o1at1S bein[~ 

the :preceding meetiw_. th::; 

for anC. ar 

explanation of the necessary delay in puttin:~ them j_nto f;ffect. He 

considered that when those plans were 

both excellent and lastinc,. 

results vould be 

13. He vould therefore sn;:>l)Ort the Brazi1J.an •roJosal TO l_JOstpone 

consideration of the nm-r allocati_ons in order to ,,rovide s.n Ol'JlOrtuni 

for the submission of amendments. 

14. Mr. TSAO (China) sa]d that his c1ele[;ation had. rel1.1ctantly voted 

for the Executive Director's recommendations the CcmrrJttee. 

After the statement by the :Brazilian i i· "'dElS 

convinceG. that there should. be an O]Jl_!ortun:i 

therefore support the :Bro.zilian )Y'O})osal. 

for amendment and voulcl 

15. Mr. Sli'ICH ( ll}e':r EJaid that his tLaC_ cor~tr:i btl ted 

a great deal to the Children's Yund . That corrtri ba.sc-;d 

the provisions of resolution 57( I), 1rhich ec-;tablished the Fund and 

ret;ulc:~ted its utilization and administration. :Briefly> that resolution 

stated that the Fund vTCcS to "be ad:minist ereo for the llenefi t of children 

in ex-U]\JRRA countries and in countries ,,:hich hac1 l:een the victims of 

a1313ression. Child health ur_:_>'Jeu genera1l~ came third_ in Ul6 l:[st of 



E/ICEF/SR.60 
?age 6 ' 

objectives. The New Zealand delegation had been in a difficult position 

whenever the q_uestion of increased allocations for Latin America had been 

brought up. Being fully aware of the need in that continent, it had not 

ob je~ted to_~ . ~o:r~dly_ ~<;: a,J:~?c~~~o:r:s .. ~.~}?~ovej~~b~ ~he rru:q~;r:ity. _Similarly~ 

it had. not been .able to give full support to the allocations proposed for 

Germany. It was bK~ossible to extend the Fund's operations much further, 

and the children of countries which had been victims of aggression were 

still in great need. V.!hen emergencies arose ; as in Palestine and Ecuador 

for example, the New Zealand delegation had offered no opposition, but 

otherwise it was convinced that the . provisions of resolution 57( I), vri th 

its main emphasis on victims of aggression, should be respected. 

16. Re agreed that the proposed allocation for Asia seemed small 

in vimv of the undoubted need in that area. The amounts already set aside, 

however, had not yet been s pent or programmed. Although the Programme 

joJr..mittee had been ri ght to recommend the allocation of the additional 

amount of 2, 000,000 dollars, it vrould be difficult to argue in favour of 

increasing the allocation still further until a larger percentage of the 

funds were programmed. The new allocation for the Middle East covered a 

:period not yet considered by the General Assembly. The Programme Committee 

had probably been vrarranted in its assum}ltion that the Assembly would wish 

to continue the programme in Palestine, but any further increase would 

a gain be inadvisable. 

J.7. In vie1-r of the restrictions imposed by resolution 57( I), the 

Fund had been generous to Latin America. The Programme Committee's 

recc:rr.mendations had the 'bacldng of the Administration and he considered 

that they should be voted on immediately. · He therefore urg ed the Boa rd to 

c onsider those proposals 1vi thout further delay. 

18. Mr. THEODOROPOULOS (Greece) said that he was grateful to the 

repr6sentat ive of Nevr Zealand for his vie1vs, since he himself, as a member 

of a Euro:oean recipient country, vras not able to S}leak freely on the 

subjec-c. He sym}lathized with the desires of the Brazilian representative, 

but wished to remind the Board that there were still areas in Europe 

1vl1ere fightir.g continued and where the conseq_uences of the war were still 

v isible. The emerg ency situation in Greece continued to exist and the 

need for continued UNICEF as~istance could not be doubted. 

/19. Mr. ENCINAS 



E/ICEF/SR. 60 

Page 7 

19. Mr. ENCINAS (Peru) said that the Brazilian delAgation hact a 

number of amendments which it was unable to submit to the current meet inc:; . 

Further consideration of the Programme Committee 1 s recommendations woul ci_ 

tend. to :Prejudge the Brazilian amendments and. it would be tetter :proced.ure 

to wait until those amenclments had bec;n s ubmi tted_ t o the Ex ecutive Boarcl. 

Ee ther efore suggested. tha t the discussion shoulC_ be ad journed and asked 

the Ex ecutive Board to give the Brazilian de legation an op}lortunity of 

presenting its amendments . 

20. Mr. HYDE (United. Sta tes of P.merica) saicl that it would ·b e a :Pi ty 

not to acced.e to the reg_ue st of a member of t he Bc8,rd for t.ime to submit 
noivever) 

new material. The time at the Boar cl 1 s di s:posa 1 WaJS) ).imi t ed and_ t he :;er~eral 

Assemtly was in s essi on. If the Bra zili an representative woul d be rea<S.y 

t o submit his amendments at the next mee ting ) he would be willinc; to 

SU:p:port the :prOJlOSal for ao.journment, 

21. Hr. HAHN (Un ion of Sot~th Africa ) w:shect to associate himse J.:t' 

with the views expressed by t he ·united Ki ngdom r e:pretwnta.ti ve. 

22, He f elt that the alloce:1. ti ons nov sugge s ted in some r es];Jec t s 

reflected. a new the marked d.eviation f rom the first :principl es of emergency 

aid which had characterized certa in :previow3 allocatj_ ons. The agreemer:t 

t o give :priority- t o areas outside Euro:pe had apparently not been com:p2.ied 

vri th in framing the new allocation, He f u lly- a c;reecl. tha t t he ccntin:J.J.tior: 

of a id in certain European area:=: -- :particuJ.a r ly Greec6 -- ·wa s essentia l 

ann said that there was no g_uesti on of the t ota l C: . ivel~sion of the a llocction 

for Euro}le . 

23 . It mi ght) however) be possi b le to arrange a :rarti al dive r s.ion 

and he would. theref ore sup:port the Brazilian :proposal t o pos tiJor:.e the 

vote . 

24. The Cl-IAIRHAN se.ici. that it 1.rould not be neces eary t o cLiscontim~e 

the c1ebate on the Progr annne Corrunittee 1 s :pro:posals ) since the discussior:. 

could n ot :prejudice any amencl.:rL.ents sutmi tted by .Brazil) i f the :pro:po sa~ 

to :pos t pone the vote was a cl.o:ptec'L 

25 . Mr. COPJ~EA (Ecuador) said that as a r epresenta.tive of :::Catin 1-..meri cc. 

on the Progrw.me Cornmi ttee he had on the precedi ng day as keel the 

Administration whether any :progrmrllles were vendj_nc; for latin America . 

vThen the Administr a tion had saicl t hat the2.~e uere n ':me ) he had clravm the 

/C:omnittee 1s 



E/ICEF/SR.60 
Pag~ 8 

Committee's at:tcnticn to an exten.si ye :programme that was to be . submitted by 

Brazil. He wished to recall that point and thought that since there was 

still information outs~~nding, it would be better to wait before taking 

a final Yote on the new allocations recommended by the Programme Committee. 

26. Mrs • SINCIAI~ '(Canada) wondered wbether the Brazilian re:presenta-

ti Ye could gi Ye some inctica tion of the deductJ.:.;ns he wished to make in 

the :proposed allocations, since it would ineYitably be necessary to deduct 

from some before increasing others. The need for assistance was uni Yersal 

but good reasons should be adyanced for any change in existing :programmes. 

27. Mr. HEYWARD (Deputy Director, ICEF), replying to the Ecuadorean 

re:presentatiYe 1s ~uestion concerning what further re~uirements were under 

consideration in connexion with the latin American allocation, stated 

that expected additional re~uirements included 250,000 dollars for insect 

control-in Central America and 90, 000 dol~ars for BCG in Mexico. Other 

exiJenses in connexion with BCG were expected to amount to a further 

200,000 dollars. Further exiJenditure was also expected on e~ui~ent 

recommended for the emergency in Ecuaa.or. · A definite re~uest from Brazil 

had not yet been receiYed. 

28 . Mr. All~IDA (Brazil) said that he wanted to make changes in the 

nev allocations recommended because he did not understand the :pattern of 

those allocat~ons. Mortality rates showed that conditions in Europe had 

i mproYed. The situation in Gr e ece was the exception, but generally 

SJleaking , there was no emergency. Europe should not be regarded as haYing 

an ac~uirecl right to l arger allocations simply because its :plans for 

exiJencU ture were already :Prepared.. Those :plans were not directly related 

to European needs, which did_ not justify a larger share of ayailable 

resources. · The remedy vas to s:p•ed u:p the :plans for areas outside Europe 

and not to leaYe EuroiJean exiJenditure unabated. Asia and latin America 

were slow in formulating their re~uests but their needs were greater. 

29. The re:presentatiYe of New Zealand had_ s.aid that within the limits 

of resolution 57 (I), the Fund. had been generous to latin America. Bulgaria, 

Roma~a, Hungary, Germany ancl Ja:Pan, howeyer, did not come under the 

IJrOYisions of resolution 57 (I) and their ~uotas greatly exceeded the 

assistance afforcLed. to latin America. It seemed strange that former 

aggressors should be entitled to :P~iority. 

/30. He would 



E/ICEF /SR. 60 
:Page 9 

,~ C . lie would oe aole to Sl)_bmit his o.elegation 1s am.enclm.ents to the 

ExecutiYe Board. at the encl.. of t i.1e meet:Lng. 

:a. Mr. ElU."CCII (Iifevr Zealand.) vriehec1 to point out) in re:PlY to the 

:Brazilian :representatiYe; tbs.t hi s o.e legation had not oeen in favour ol' 

allocating funcls to Germa""Y ancl Ja}Jan . 

32 . I'he CFJUDHAHJ SJ:Jeakin;~ in hiu capacity af: :Polish Te}lJ:'esentati.veJ 

said. he was glacl that it had. be;:;n to confirm ~olans fo r some 

latin An1erican countrie s . Earl h:Ls delegation voteC:. i n the :Progrc:unme 

ConmrL ttee' it vroulcl have SUJ;rportecl che larger aJ.locnti on for latin l .:merica . 

·:;3. He 1ms unab le to agree, ho\-rever, that :o;uro~oe vms better oZf tl1an 

bofcro the -vrar. He invited the }3r a zilian rqJresentcj_;i ve to consider 

cl.ocument 'J',/ ICEF/'~'1 . 89 ano. conrpare the fi gure of 000 , 000 clolla:rs fo:c the 

t a r c;e t o ud.get with the a llocations to elate and. t he recommendecl aO.cHtional 

allocations. Delegations some t:Lmes seemeo_ to act on t he asswn:ption t hat 

the Funo. vras assured of a :perm.anent revenue. On tte contrary, unceasinc; 

efforts had to oe macte to ootain resource s an c. Government support. 

34. 1h th regard to German:r, the Polish delegation hac_ at first oeen 
to 

opposed to the idea of granting assistance. later' however) it had a zsreecl/that 

vrhen more funds were available and the pr~grammes in c01mtries of fir st 

:priority had got under way, ' Rewould. ansvrer his Brazilian colle~ gue 1 s 

question as to 1-rhy Bulgaria) Hm1gary and Romania hacl oeen incluo.ed . It 

was ·because the children in those countrie s had felt the full impact of 

~-Tar. let Ivir. Almeida journey through European countries -- he would see 

~ T 1 1 · Th nver; • the efrects of the war. hey were ong - astlng. e emergency was oy no means; 

35. He agreeo_ that every effort shoulc. oe made to utilize the 

unprogrammed allocations for Asia and was glad that a further allocation 

had. oeen :proposed. That did not mean that he was Willing to accept the 

Brazilian argument that neeo.s in Europe had already oeen coverecl ano. that 

complete priority should oe given to the Far East anc_ Latin America . 

36 . Jl1r . CORREA (Ecuac3.or) macle a forma l proposal tha t the o.iscussion 

of the PJ..~ogramme ComnrL ttee 1 s recommendaticns regarding ne1v allocations 

shoulc1 b e a djournecl. That :proposal took precedence over the Brazilian 

motion to postpone the vcte on the recommenclations and. 1voulC:: give 

delegations an opportunity to submit aD1e~cinents . 

The ·[lro-posal to ad.,journ the cl.eoate to t he followinn: meetinr~ \vas 

adopted by 10 votes to 1, with 9 abstentions . 

/37 · Mrs • SI NC ll\.IR 



E /ICEF /SR. 60 
Page 10 

37. Mrs. SINCLAIR (Chairman of the Programme Committee) drew the 

Committee's attention to :paragraph 27, :page ll, of d.ocum.ent E/ICEF/129, 

dealing with the programme ~n Albania. She recalled that on the recumm8nda-
, . 

tion of' the Administration, the Board had approved.allocations to Albania 

for 1950, subject to the satisfactor,y settlement of the differences between 

the Albanian Government .and UNICEF. Comrersations had been held with the 

Albanian Government to enable UNICEF to continue sending supplies. She 

noted that no supplies had been sent since April. The Programme Committee 

was aware that the need of Albania....'l children was still great, On the 

other hand, there ~ere agreements between the Fund and various Governments, 

and the Programme Committee had to be sure that all the terms of those 

aereements were carried out. 

36 . She drew attention to paragraph t3 of the Executive :Director's 

Note, which stated that "In view of .the repeated declarations of the 

Government of Albania that it accepts the Agreement, the Committee may 

wish to consider, if the Government of Albania desired it, that the Fund 

should make a new start by shipping in two months 1 supplies concurrently 

with the arrival of a Mission Chief and Secretary on the prior understanding 

that there would_ be a visit and report by a representative of the Fund •.• 11 

39. The Programme Committee had received various suggestions for a . 

new Mission Chief. Mr. Chmielewski had been proposed, and the Albanian 

Government was lvilling to accept him as Mission Chief. The Programme 

Committee would like to re~uest that the programme be resumed, if the 

further condition regarding :Doctor Egger and a secretary could be met. 

40. 1~. SUTCH (New Zealand) thought it unfortunate that the subject 

had come up before the Board. The Board should realize that in passing 

that paragraph as it now s toocl_, it was preventing the Albanian Government 

from receiving supplies. 

41. He had been present at the meeting ·of t r eProgramme Corrm:i:~tee, 

when the Albanian representative had stated that his Government considered ' 

that the application of the Agreement was the essential ~uestion. The · 

paragraph, however, referred_ to a regrettable incident, in which UNICEF 

had not played a diplomatic part. He regretted that UNICEF should engage 

in di sputes with sovereign States. 

/42. l~s. 'SINCLAIR 



E/ICEF /SR. 60 
Page 11 

42. Mrs. SINCLAIR (Chairman of the Programme Co:mmi ttee) remarked that 

there were certain ~uestions of principle involved, concerning the 

responsibilities of the Fund for its operations. She hoped that, even if the 

Albanian Government considered that a visitor from Head~uarters was 

superfluous, it would take into consideration the fact that the new 

Mission Chief had not previously worked fer the Fund, and that in those 

conditions, a visi. tor frcm the outside was indicated. Her ci.' legation felt 

that any country accepting the aid of UNICEF should understand that it bad 

responsibilities with regard to its terms of reference. 

4 3. Mr. SUTCH (New Zealand) stated that Mrs. Sinclair 1 s explanation had 

made the situation clear. Since it was a ~uestion of the normal procedure of 

a representative from Head~uarters visiting an area in order to report on the 

progress of the work, there was a possibility of future good 1elations. 

44. Mrs. IENROGT (United States of America) thought that the ~uesti0n 

before the Corrcmittee was to make possible the resumption of aid to the fl- ,-;, 

children of Albania. The proposal before the Board was most reasonable, and her 

delegation vrould support it vrarmly. 

45. The CHAIRMAN asked Mrs. Sinclair and the representative of the 

Administration whether it vras intended, as a nornal procedure, to send a 

representative of Head~uarters in addition to the Mission Chief. 

46. Mrs. SINCLAIR (Chairman of the Programme Cowcmittee) replied that the 

time element referred to the past situation in Albania, and that a member of 

the staff should be sent in order to help solve certain problems which had 

arisen at that time. Generally, a member from Head~uarters should be able to 

visit a Mission. 

47. Mr. KOBUSHKO (Union of Soviet Socialist Republics) remarked that his 

delegation had already had occasion to state its position at a meeting of the 
,-

PrograJLIDe Co:mmittee, and that it vrould continue to vote against the report, 

since it confirmed the position taken by the kdministration, which could only 

le ~ualified as discrimination against the children of Albania. 

/48. He regretted 



E /I CEF /SR. 60 
Page 12 

48. He regretted that the Administration had not set forth all the facts 

of the ~uestion relating to Albania, and also that the Programme CoEmittee 

had failed to show what the actual state of affairs was. By the Administration 

Albania had been made to appear as violating an agreement, and a~ a result, the 

children of Albania had been deprived of supplies. 

49. With regard to the alleged act of violation on the part of the 

Albanian Government, he stated that a careful perusal of the documentation 

contained in the Executive Director's Note would show that the agreement had 

been violated, not by the Albanian Government, but by the Administration. The 

Administration had suspended deliveries without informing the Programme CommitteE 

of'all the facts of the dispute with the Albanian Government. In accordance 

with article 9 of the agreement, that ~uestion should have been raised in the 

Programme Committee. And yet the Albanian Government was being accused of 

having violated the agreement. 

50. He wished to discuss some of the official statements of the 

Administration concerning the Albanian programme. The ~uestion was being 

currently discussed, because the Albanian Government had supposedly failed to 

carry out its obligations with regard to the programme. Yet in his letter of 

27 February 1949, the Head of UNICEF in Albania stated that he was satisfied 

with the way in which the programme was being put into effect. Moreover, 

Mr. Davidson, the Director of European Head~uarters, had visited Albania and 

had stated that he was pleased with the Fulfilment of programme and he 

had received a warm weleome. At the same time it could not therefore be 

alleged that the Albanian Government did not permit representatives to visit 

the country. 

51. It was also superfluous to state in the report that a secretarJr should 

be sent with the Mission Chief, especially in view of the fact that 

Mr. Chmielewski was a man of great experience who had worked with the Red Cross 

and Who was, moreover, a doctor. And since the Administration knew that 

Allania considered that it was superfluous to send thr~e persons from UNICEF, 

the Administration's :nsistance on that point would appear to indicate that 

they intended to discontinue sending supplies to Albania. 

52.. Mr. Kobushko then read excerpts from Mr. Davidson's report of kis field 

trip, in which he had ;stated that the nurseries he had vis'i ted were exemplary, 

as was the kindergarten in Tirana. He had also noted the high level of 

educational services ancL had, in the same d.ocume:r.t, expressed praise of the 

activities of the Allanj_an Government. The d.ocument also refuted the charge 

that information concerning UNICEF had not been disseminated. 

/53. WHh regard 



E/ICEF/SR.6t 
Page 13 

53. With regard to the further charge that the representatives of UNICEF 

had not had an opportunity to visit various places in Allania, Mr. Davidson had 

clearly stated in the same report that he had visited many parts of the country. 

Those accusations were therefore also incorrect. 

54. Other charges against the Albanian Government were contained in the 

letter of 3 May by Mr . Davidson, but they were neither solid nor well founded. 

They bad been made by the Head of the Mission, who after giving a highly 

laudatory report on the actions of the Albanian Government, had made unofficial 

accusations against the same Government, ~hich could not be considered valid, 

since his previous statements had refuted them. 

55. In another letter of 20 March, Mr. Walling, the UNICEF representative 

in Albania, had noted with satisfaction the activities of the Albanian 

Gover~Jment. He had praised the ~a-operati on between the Fund and the Government, 

and had praised the interest shown by the Government in the work of the Fund, 

and the extent of the financial contribution it had ~ade. That letter was an 

official document which refuted the statement later made by Mr. Davidson 

orally. Those accusations should thercfure be withdrawn, and supplies should no 

longer be withheld from Albania. 

56. Further, the supplies of the Fund had failed to reach Albania on time, 

and when the Albanian Gover11lL.ent had pointed out that fact, the Administration 

had failed to give any explanation of its action. The Albanian Government 

therefore maintained that UNI CEF' had failed to adhere to the provisions of the 

agreement. 

57. Moreover, it had been surprising that Mr. Walling had taken with birr_ 

the car belonging to UNICEF when he l oft Albania, and had left other UNICEF 

material at foreign legations in Tirana. As the Albanian Government stated, it 

would appear that preparation for the suspension of supplies had been carefully 

carried out . 

58 . The Administration was still violating the agreement by demanding the 

acceptance of three persons by Albania. The Administration had earlier proposed 

an Englishman as Missi on Chief, and it had not then insisted on either a 

representative of the Administration or a secretary. 

59. The letter dated 24 hpril, 1949, (ArilleX 7) explained the conditions for 

the issuance of visas, and the l etter of ll July, 1949, (Annex 15) informed the 

Administration of the Altanian Goverfl..n:ent 1 s agreement with the Fund. 

/' 0. With regard 



E/ICEF/SR.60 
Page 14-

60 . · With regard to the accusations that mail had not been received 

within a reasonable time,the Albanian Government could hardly be blamed 

f or that delay. The letters had probally been sent from abroad, and it 

was impossible to know where they might have been retained. 

61 . The allegation that the Mission Chief was not free to observe 

the distribution of UNICEF supplies was also unfounded. I n Mr. Walling's 

report dated 20 March 191+9, he mentioned that he had visited seven 

different places. 

0
,-0 

c. •. Concerning the distribution of cod-liver oil, Mr. Kobushko 

would make no comment, since he did not have detailed documentation on 

the subject . But he was unable to understand why the point had not been 

raised directly by Mr . Walling with the Albanian Government. 

63 . Finally, with regard to the accusation that the recipients of 

UNICEF'S as s istance had not been informed of the source of that aid, he 

stated that the Goverr~ent, in accordance with the agreement, had afforded 

all the information on the sour~ e and supply of children's food. 

Mr. Davidson himself had noted that Albanians were informed of the source. 

64. In conclusion therefore, not only had the Administration vi olated 

its agreement and accused the Albani an Government on the basis of 

Mr. Davidson's unofflcial report, but it.was persisting in its disariminatory 

methods by insisting on unacceptable conditions. In the document submitted 

at the current meeting, the Board had excluded Albania from its allocations. 

Albania should be included in the list of countries for which additional 

funds were set aside. The Sovi et Union therefore prvposed that Albania 

should be included in UNICEF 1 s table of distributions, and that the 

AO.ministration should immedi atel y resume shipment of supplies to Al bania. 

65. Mr . LED\ITARD (United Kingdom) asked that the Administration be 

given an opportunity to reply to the remarks that had been made regarding 

its role in the Albanian situation. 

66. Mr . J CCKEL (Australia) wished to suggest certain amendmsnts 

in the Programme Cormnittee 1 s recommendat ion regarding the Albanian 

prc\gramme. He proposed that the words "on the development of the 

prograrr,me'1 should ·oe inserted after the word "report" in line 6. 

The last sentence, explaining the purpose of the report, could then 

be deleted. The first two l ines of . the recommendation should also be deleted . 

/It was 



E/ ICEF/SR. 60 
Page 15 

J:t was not necessary for the Committee to explain i ts recommendation and 

the wording of those first two l ines mi ght b e regarded_ as invidi ous . 

The Coil'.mittee ' s recommencl_ation would then r ead : "The Corr:mittee recoi!'lnends 

that the Executive Board authorize a new start in the programme by shipping 

in two months ' supplies concurrently with the arr ival of a Mission Chief 

and s ecretary, on the pr ior unde:cstanding that there would be a visit and 

report on the development of the prograrrill1e by a representative of the Fund 

from UNICEF Headquarters or European Headquarters within six weeks . 11 

67 . The CEAIPJviAN i nvited the repres cntati ve of the USSR to suggest 

a definite form of words t o repl ace the .erogramme Committee ' s recorranendation. 

68 . Mr . KOBUSBKO (Union of Sovi et Socialist Republics) sa i d. that 

the essence of the rec ommendat ion should be the immedia t e resumption of 
- of 

supplies s imultaneously with the departure for Albaniaj a Chief of Mission . 

He t .herefore proposed the followin g text in place of t h e ? r ograi!'.me Commi t t ee's 

wording: "The Executive Board rec ommends that the admini s tra ti on r enew 

shipments to Albania without delay . At the same time, the administ:catj_on 

should settle all pending quest ions by negotiati on <lith the Albania n 

Government . " 

69. Mr . SUTCH (Nmv Zealand) expressed hi s apprec iation of the c hange s 

suggested b;y the Australian representative . The new Herding 1vas more 

diplomatic tha n the .flrogramme Committee' s olAi ginal recommenda t i on. He 

Hondered, in view of the adminiRtration's attitude and the fa ct tha t such 

details were worked out in cons ulta tion >vith governments, 1vhether it would 

not be poss ible t o also delete the 1vo:cds 11 a no_ secretary'' . The provi s ion 

of subordinate staff was not one wit h which the Executive Boar d had 

concerned itself . 

70 . Mrs . SI NClAIR (Ca nada) (Cha i rman of t h e .Progre.mme Coll1lLit tee ) said 

that there had been much di s cussi on on that point i n the Programme Corrmittee . 

The administra tion had felt tha t it was parti cularly .im.p ortant to have a n 

expe:cienced staff member a ccompa n;ying a new Chief of Miss i on . In h er 

capacity of Canadian r epres enta t:L ve, she Bupport ed. the changes s uggested 

by Australia but did 0t a gree wj.th the deletion of the words " and s ecretary" 

prop osed by Ne-vr Zea land . 

/71. Miss I ,ENRJC/l' 



E/ICEF/SR. 60 
Page l b · 

71. Mis.s LEI'JROOI' (United States of America) supported the amendments 

sugge~ted by the Australian representative. , On the other hand , she felt 

that the words "and secretary" should be retained. 

72 . The CHAIRMAJ\T stated that he was anxious to see the resumpti.on 

of the programme in Albania. It was most important that the Mission 

Chief should be sent to Albania and that supp
1
lies should be continued. 

73 . He felt that the <J.Uestion of sending a secretary could hardly 

be considered a matter of principle and that the shipment of supplies 

under the J,greement could surely not be conditional on the presence of a 

secretary with the Mission Chief. It would be an entirely different matter 

if the Albanian Government were to propose amendments to the Agreement 

which would infringe its basic ~fiLciples. 

74 . Miss LENRCar (United States of 'America) remarked that the <J.Uestion 

of principle was whether the Administration was being maintained in a 

situation in which it could continue operations. The Government of Albania 

had specifically declined to ·give a visa to a secretary. 

75 . The CHAI&~ understood that Mr . Pate had said that he would 

settle the <J.Uestion of a secretary, and he felt strongly that the ExecQti7e 

Board should not make the resumption 'of sending supplies conditional- u~on 

the sending of a secretary. 

76 . Mrs. SINCLAIJ~ (Chairman of the Proe,JYamme Committee) agyeed with 

the United States representative th~t a <J.Uestion of principle was involved. 

It was for the Board t o make amendments to the resolution. Every effort 

had been maci_e to reach an agreement. The Fund had definite responsibilities 

in the terms of its trusteeship. She felt, moreover, that the Administration 

was asking only for a :ninimum. 

77. Mr. KOBUSBKO. (Union of Soviet Socialist Republi\.;s) <tat.~1d that 

he was surprised to hear the last statement , 'in view of the fact that the 

A~ .tanian Government had incticated that it would adhere to the Agreement . . 

vlhat was essential was that the phrase should conto. in no ultimatum. 

/78. 1v1r. LEDWARD 



E/ICEF/SR. 60 
Page 17 

78 . Mr. LEDWARD (United Kingdom) formally :proposed the closure of 

the debate. 

The proposal wa s adopted by 1 3 votes to none, with 5 abstentions. 

79 . The CHAIRJv'JAN put to the vote the first :part of the US~.:3R amendment, 

vrhich read as follows: 

"The Executive Board. recommends that the A(.minis c.:ratJ.on 

renew shipments to Al bania without delay." 

The first :part of the GSSR amendment was rejected by 14 votes to 

4 , wi th 4 abstentions. 

80 . The CF.AIRivlAN :put to the vote the second :part of the USSR 

amendment, vlhich read as follmm: 

"At the same time the Administration should settle all pending 

questions by negotiation vi th the Albanian Government." 

The second :part of the u;.3~3R amendment 1vas rejected by 1 3 votes 

to 4, with 4 abstentions. 

dl . The CHAIRJv'lAN :put to the vote the Australian amendments, -beginning 

with the :proposal to ctelete the first phrase of :paragraph (a): " In vjew 

of the repeated declarations of the Government of Albania that it accepts the 

Agreement and wishes a resumption of the :programme, the Committee recommends 

that " 

'I'he :proposal to delete the first :phrase of paragraph (a) was adopted 

cy 19 votes to 2 . 

82 . The CHAIBNlAN :put to the vote the :proposal to insert the words 

II On development Of the :programme" after the WOrd "report" o 

The proposal to insert those words was adopted by 17 votes to 2 , 

with 2 abstentions. 

83 . The CFAI~AN put to the vote the :proposal to delete the last 

sentence of paragraph (a) . 

The proposal to delete the last sentence of :paragraph (a) was adopted 

by 18 votes to none, with 2 abstentions. 

84. On the suggestion of Yugoslavia, the CBAIRMAN put to the vote 

the :phrase: 

"The Executive Beard authorize a nev start in the :programne 

by shipping in two months' supplies concurrently wi-th the arrival 

of a Mission Chief ." 

That :phrase was adopted by 20 votes to noc.E1 with 2 abstentions. 

/85 . The CHAIFivlAN 



E/ICEFISR. 60 
Page 18 

85. The CHAIRMAN put to the vote the words "and secretary". 

Those words were adopted by ll votes to 5, with 4 abstentions. 

86 . The CHAIRM.AN put to the vote -the phrase: 

"on the prior understanding that there would be a visit and 

and report on deYelopment of the programne by a representative of 

the Fund ~rom UNICEF Headquarters or European Headquarters within 

six weeks." 

That phrase was adopted by 16 votes to 4, with 3 abstentions. 

The meeting rose at 6 p .m. 

28/ll p.m. 




